HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 9, 2001
1:39 P. M

TAPE HFC 01 — 76, Side
TAPE HFC 01 - 76, Side
TAPE HFC 01 - 77, Side
TAPE HFC 01 - 77, Side
TAPE HFC 01 - 78, Side

>wW>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:39 P. M

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative El don Mul der, Co-Chair
Representati ve Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Representative John Davi es
Representative Carl Mses
Representative John Harris
Representative Bill Hudson
Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ri chard Foster

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Lisel MQ@iire; Representative Fred Dyson;
Representative Joe G een; Representative Pete Kott;
Representati ve Chenaul t; Kevi n Jardel |, Staff,
Representative Joe G een; Rod Arno, Alaska Qutdoor Council
Pal mer; Pam LaBolle, President, Al aska State Chanber of
Comrerce; Geg Persson, Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ation
(PSEA); Tim Navarre, President, Kenai Peninsula Borough
Assenbly; David Katzeek, Juneau; Mako Haggerdy, Honer; Al
McKinley, Sr., Alaska Native Brotherhood, Juneau; Vernon
Marshal |, Executive Director, NEA — Alaska; Kathryn Kurtz,
Attorney, Legislative Affairs Agency; Craig Persson, Public
Saf ety Enpl oyees Association, Fairbanks; A fred MKinley,
Sr., Alaska Native Brotherhood, Juneau; Barbara Huff-
Tucknus, Director, Legislative and Governnental Affairs for
the Teansters, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Janes Jordan, Executive Director, Al aska State WMdical
Board, Anchorage; Debbie Gssiander, Chugach Hi gh School,

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/09/01 1:39 PM



Anchorage School Board, Anchorage; Brooke Mles, Alaska
Public Oficers Comm ssion (APOC), Anchorage; Steven Conn,
Executive Director, Alaska Public Interest Research G oup,
Anchor age; Janes Price, Kenai ; Richard Van Hattan,
President, Correctional Oficers Bargaining Unit, Kenai;
Dwi ght Nissen, Delta Junction; Roy G| bertson, Mayor, Delta
Juncti on.

SUMVARY

HB 99 An Act relating to school discipline and safety
prograns; and providing for an effective date.

CS HB 99 (HES) was reported out of Conmttee with
a “do pass” recommendation and with a new zero
fiscal note by Departnent of Education & Early
Devel opnent .

HB 113 An Act relating to health care insurance paynents
for hospital or nedical services; and providing
for an effective date.

CS HB 113 (HES) was reported out of Commttee with
a “do pass” recomendation and with zero fiscal
notes by Departnment of Community & Economc
Devel opnent dated 3/07/01 and the Departnent of
Adm ni stration.

HB 149 An Act relating to correctional facility space and
to authorizing the Departnent of Corrections to
enter into an agreenent to lease facilities for
the confinenment and care of prisoners within the
Kenai Peni nsul a Bor ough.

CS HB 149 (FIN) was reported out of Commttee with
“indi vidual recommendations” and with fiscal notes
by the Departnment of Corrections dated 3/22/01 and
t he Departnent of Revenue.

HB 177 An Act pl aci ng certain speci al i nt erest
organi zations within the definition of 'group' for
purposes of Al aska's canpaign finance statutes;
provi ding a contingent anmendnent to take effect in
case subjecting these organizations to all of the
statutory requirenents pertaining to groups is
held by a court to be unconstitutional; requiring
certain organizations to disclose contributions
made to them and expenditures nade by them
requiring disclosure of the true source of
canpaign contributions; and providing for an
effective date.

CS HB 177 (STA) was reported out of Commttee with
“indi vidual recomrendations” and with a fiscal

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/09/01 1:39 PM



note by the Departnent of Admnistration dated
3/ 22/ 01.

HB 194 An Act relating to fees for comrercial fishing
licenses and permts; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 194 was POSTPONDED for a hearing at a |ater
dat e.

HCR 13 Relating to the nonresident fee differential for
commercial fishing permts and |icenses.

HCR 13 was POSTPONDED for a hearing at a |ater
dat e.

#HBO9
HOUSE BILL NO 99

An Act relating to school discipline and safety
prograns; and providing for an effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE LESIL MCGUIRE commented that violence in
Al aska's schools has recently been brought into the
comunity spotlight as a result of serious physica
al tercations between students. The fights have been viol ent
resulting in severe bodily harm Education requires our
children to learn how to live in society through the
acceptance of rules and comunity val ues.

Representative MQ@ire stated that HB 99 would be a tool
avai lable to schools to help confront both violent and non-
violent conflicts. HB 99 would anend Title 14 of the Al aska
Statutes to include policies that would initiate student
conflict-resolution curriculum providing net hods of
nonvi ol ent resolution and nediation for student conflict.
HB 99 would seek to recognize and enforce existing behavior
standards by giving students alternatives for solving
probl ens besides the use of violence. By integrating that
way of learning into the schools core curriculum policies
would be targeted at helping students resolve problens
before they escal ate.

Representative MGQuire pointed out the zero fiscal note
submtted by the Departnent of Education &  Early
Devel opnent .

Representative Harris asked if the legislation would cause
unfounded nandate expenditures to the | ocal school
districts. Representative McQuire stated that it would not

have that effect. She noted the direct contrast wth the
| anguage in the previous bill and pointed out the program
requiring the policies had been renoved. Representati ve

McCGuire noted that three of the schools already have

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/09/01 1:39 PM



policies in place pertaining to the reporting of school
conflict. That inclusion wll waive them out of the
stipul ation.

Representative MQ@ire added that there would be policy
manual updates distributed to the school districts. Schools
woul d use existing resources to determne if there were
problens in their areas. She noted that the bill would help
i ndi vidual school districts to obtain grant application
f unds.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde stated that Chugiak H gh School does have a
nmedi ati on program in place. He asked if the information
that district had gathered would be available to the other
districts. Additionally, Vice-Chair Bunde questioned what
the charge assessed to each high school would be if the
program | anguage were to be added back.

Representative McQ@iire indicated that there was a novenent
to create a database and that the materials would be
avai |l abl e. She noted that through her office budget, she
intended to put together a packet addressing the “Peace-able
School Project”, which would be sent to every school in the
State. The current costs of the Chugiak program runs about
$30 - $40 thousand dollars per year. The cost to inplenent
t he nedi ati on program woul d be approxi mately $8 thousand per
year.

Representative Lancaster asked if there would be any
financial responsibility to the school districts should

problens result. Representative McQiire stated there would
not. The districts would not be punished and there woul d be
no ramfications. She advised that through the policy

letter and the news channels, the idea has been well
recei ved. She acknowl edged that an incentive exists. The
school districts want to start tal king about these concerns.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde asked if nediation was currently happeni ng
in the Al askan elenentary schools. Representative MCuire
responded that nost of the el enentary schools have sone sort
of nmediation control happening. However, kids are com ng
into the high schools and those trained nediator services
are no |longer being used. Representative MQuire stressed
that Chugiak is an exception. Most high schools are not
doing it at this tine. She noted that the Ilegislation
primarily targets the high school |evel

DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), ANCHORAGE
SCHOOL BOARD, CHUG ACH HI GH SCHOOL, ANCHORAGE, noted that
the first priority of every school district is schoo

safety. Ms. GOssiander comented that her school district
has been working toward inproving conflict resolution for a
nunber of years. Mich of the work has been done through
federal grant nonies, specifically the Federal Safe and Drug

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/09/01 1:39 PM



Free Schools. She indicated that the Anchorage School Board
supports the proposed |egislation and pointed out that the
| egi sl ati on would help districts to access grant funding.

VERNON MARSHALL, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, NATIONAL EDUCATI ON
ASSCClI ATI ON (NEA) - ALASKA, noted that NEA does support the
passage of HB 99. The issue of school safety has been a top
priority for the Union's agenda for nmany years. He noted
that HB 99 would address the inportance of devel oping
strategies that hopefully would | ead to prograns designed to
hel p students cope wth aggressive thoughts and feelings.
There is currently staff enployed to address school safety
concer ns. M. Marshal noted that working with children at
an early age addressing these issues of aggression, would be
beneficial to all school age children.

M. Marshall distributed a packet of material that is used
by teachers at in-service trainings throughout the State.
[ Copy on File].

Vice-Chair Bunde MOVED to report CS HB 99 (HES) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CS HB 99 (HES) was reported out of Committee with a "do
pass" recomrendation and with a new zero fiscal note by
Department of Education & Early Devel opnent.

#HB113
HOUSE BILL NO._ 113

An Act relating to health care insurance paynents for
hospital or nedical services; and providing for an
effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE JCE GREEN testified that HB 113 would build
upon a national trend to develop fair paynent provisions
that woul d enable health insurance conpanies to nmake sound
busi ness decisions while ensuring that patients receive
benefit paynents in an appropriate tinme frame. The concept
of "pronpt pay" legislation has been successfully adopted
and i nplenented by 39 states.

HB 113 requires health insurers to pay benefits wthin

thirty calendar days of receiving a "clean claint. If a
paynent is not made on tine, the insurer would be charged
interest on the outstanding claim HB 113 would also

establish a definition for "clean clainm that recognizes an
i nsurance conpany's need to make paynent decisions based
upon conpl ete and accurate information.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde noted that since the |egislation indicates
that interest would be paid for delayed paynents, that

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/09/01 1:39 PM



concept indicates that currently, the insurance conpanies
are maki ng noney on those paynents del ayed past thirty days.
He asked if it was known what that anmount was nationally.

Representative G een explained that there is a presunption
by the insurance conpanies that if they delay paynent, they
then have use of that noney.

Representative Croft asked about the definition of clean
claim He asked if it had been “tested” in other states.

KEVI N JARDELL, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE JOE GREEN, responded
that the definition of “clean clainf has been addressed by
many states and is difficult to formulate. He noted that
the definition chosen, benefits insurance conpanies and is
broadly witten. Physi cians requested that “hard” date
| ines be established. Clean claim term nol ogy cones from
the Medicare definition

Representative Croft asked an alternative definition. M.
Jardell replied that the American Medical Association (AVA)
is agreeable with the proposed definition. He stressed that
the intent was not to undermne the viability of insurance
conpani es in Al aska.

Representative Croft asked where the procedures would be
outlined regarding whether the insurance conpanies owe the
claim or not. M. Jardell replied that the claimant would
go through the Insurance Division by filing a conplaint. It
is the intent that the legislation would make insurance
conpani es devel op nore efficient nmethods of paying clains.

Representative Davies referenced Page 4, and asked if the
qualifier that precludes tinely paynents on the claim apply

into propriety as well as circunstances. M. Jardel
understood that it would not apply to | anguage that resulted
froma technical or grammatical error. If the information

needed had been included on the claim then that claimwould
be a clean claim Representative G een advised that nost of
the larger insurance conpanies insure nore than one state
and that this |anguage was used by a significant nunber of
states. He stated that it was reasonabl e.

Representative Hudson asked if the "clean claint would be
i npacted by Medicare's del ay response. Representative G een
replied that the legislation would apply between the insured
and the insurance conpany.

JAMVES JORDAN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA STATE WMEDI CAL ASSQOCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE,
testified that the Al aska State Medical Association does

support the proposed |egislation. He stated that "clean
claim definition included in the bill 1is based on
Medi care’s definition. Currently, there are regulations

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/09/01 1:39 PM



being adopted on the federal |evel, which deal wth the
confidentiality of nedical records and information for the

paynment of health insurance clains. In enacting that bill
M. Jordan stated that there would be an activation of
regul ati ons. It is anticipated that the State Division of

Insurance will adopt regulations defining what a clean claim
is.

Representative Davies asked how to read Subsection K, Page
4, the qualifier of tinely paynents. He asked if that would
be in reference to all three clauses, the defect, the
i npropriety and the circunstance. M. Jordan replied that
it woul d.

Representati ve Hudson MOVED to report CS HB 113 (HES) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal note. Representative Harris OBJECTED in
order to ask about all the fiscal notes. Representative
G een stated that they were all zero. Representative Harris
W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON.

There being NO further OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CS HB 113 (HES) was reported out of Committee with a "do
pass" recomendations and wth zero fiscal notes by
Department of Adm nistration and Departnent of Conmunity &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent dated 3/07/01

#HBL177
HOUSE BI LL NO. 177

An Act placing certain special interest organizations
within the definition of 'group' for purposes of

Al aska's canpaign finance statutes; providing a
contingent amendnent to take effect in case subjecting
t hese or gani zati ons to al | of t he statutory

requi renents pertaining to groups is held by a court to
be unconstitutional; requiring certain organizations to
di scl ose contributions nmade to them and expenditures
made by them requiring disclosure of the true source
of canpaign contributions; and providing for an
effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOIT pointed out that in 1999, the
Al aska Supreme Court in Anmerican Civil Liberties Union
(ACLU) versus State wupheld Alaska's ban on political
contributions and independent expenditures by corporations
and | abor unions. The Court also held that entities nust be
al l oned to nmake i ndependent expenditures if:

. They coul d not participate in business activities;

. They have no shareholders who have a claim on
corporate earnings; and

House Fi nance Committee 7 04/09/01 1:39 PM



. They are independent from the influence of
busi ness cor porati ons.

The Court suggested that entities, which neet those
criteria, nust be permtted to make political contributions.

Representative Kott stated that CS HB 177 (STA) clarifies
that non-group entitities that neet that criteria may nake
contributions and i ndependent expenditures. The |egislation
woul d subject those groups to the sane rules, including
contribution |limts and reporting requirenents as other
groups that participate in political canpaigns.

Representative Whitaker inquired who would be excluded.
Representative Kott replied that it would only exclude non-
group entities that fall into the categories listed in
Subsection 2.

TAPE HFC 01 - 77, Side B

Representative Kott noted that the only group that the
| egi sl ati on excludes now would be the Al aska Conservation
Voters (ACQV).

Representative Witaker asked the intent of +the bill
Representative Kott replied that it was specifically to
preclude ACV from nmaking the contributions they nmade in the
past and to preclude any other non-group entities from
“falling into” that category. Representative Witaker
understood that the bill would create a "level playing
field" and close an existing |oophole.

Representative Davi es asked if Subsection 5 would be anended
to AS 15.13.400. He asked the operational sentence that
precedes that reference.

KATHRYN KURTZ, ATTORNEY, LEG SLATIVE LEGAL AND RESEARCH
SERVI CES, LEGQ SLATIVE AFFAIRS AGENCY, explained that the
first sentence of paragraph 5 would be the definition that
currently exists for “group”. That section provides all the
definitions of that area of the canpaign finance |aw. Every
time “group” is used, it would nean what it used to nean

plus the |anguage added in the |egislation. The | anguage
woul d add that group entity to net the criteria.

Representative J. Davies understood that |anguage woul d not
exclude the Alaska Ol and Gas Association (AOG) as a
speci al interest organization.

Ms. Kurtz responded that the bill wuld include those
entities. She noted that the case driving the |egislation

House Fi nance Committee 8 04/09/01 1:39 PM



is the <case of the Mssachusetts Ctizens for Life.
Entities that fit into that category would be included. The
definition appears elsewhere in interpreting judicial
deci si ons. She stated that the |anguage was very
restrictive about the types of groups that would fit within
1t.

Representative Davies asked how "C' was different than "B".
Representative Kott replied that "C' had been derived from
case law and clearly identifies those groups that can be
included as long as they do not neet the categories.
Qutside of that, he did not know the difference.

Representative J. Davies asked the types of groups that
woul d not be “swept in” by the | anguage of Section C

BROOKE M LES, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), ALASKA PUBLI C
OFFI CI ERS CCOWM SSI ON (APOC), ANCHORAGE, advised that the
Canpaign Disclosure Law prohibits contributions from
corporations and business education partnerships. In the
ACLU case, the Alaska Suprenme Court declined to prohibit
non-group entities that nmet the three-part arrangenent.
Last sunmer, APCC del egated regulations permtting certain
non-profit corporations to qualify for activities in
el ection canpaigns. To date, only one group has qualified,
and that is the Al aska Conservation Voters (ACVY).

Ms. Mles continued, the Ilegislation would change and
override APOC s current regulation in a couple of
significant ways. The first way concerns disclosure. The
| egislation would require groups that participate to
disclose their contribution activity differently than
current regulations require. They could still transfer to a
political account; it would have to neet all the filters in
Al aska State |aw. The contributions comng into the non-
group entity would have to be fromindividuals in the anpunt
of $500 dollars or less or from another political group
giving $1,000 dollars. She continued that the disclosure
reports would require that they show what noney had been
transferred.

Ms. Mles advised that it is APOC s expectation that the
| egislation would result in a proliferation of entities.
She stated that they would not be limted to non-profit
cor porati ons.

Representati ve Davi es questioned what other groups would be
affected. Ms. Mles replied that there have been inquiries
from ot her groups such as "Commobn Sense Al aska". She stated
that the bill would result in nore disclosure to the public.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde wunderstood that the bill would Ilimt
current participants to the sane limtations that other

House Fi nance Committee 9 04/09/01 1:39 PM



political people have to abide by and would allow for nore
expansion. M. Mles replied that was correct.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde pointed out that his constituents wanted
nore canpai gn exposure, rather than |ess. He noted his
support of the bill

Representative Harris voiced concern with the fiscal notes.
Representative Kott believed that only a mninml anmount of
applications would be submtted. He suggested that the note
mght be a little high

Ms. Mles explained that the fiscal note provides for the
first year funding for a Regulation Specialist to get on
l'i ne. G oups cannot walk in to the office wthout the
changes in place. She pointed out that current regulations
"go out the door" as soon as the legislation becones |aw.
APCC believes that there will be a | ot of these groups.

Representative Harris recomended zeroing the fiscal note
out .

Vi ce-Chair Bunde referenced the travel aspect of the fisca
note to be used to educate staff. He asked why i ndivi dual
areas should cone to Anchorage to be educated. Ms. Mles
replied that the common practice is for APOC to go to the
communities to educate people regarding the canpaign
changes. She predicted that there wll be substantial
inpact and it would be difficult for APOC to stay on top of
the | egislation.

Representative Croft spoke about those groups that fit into
Subsection "B". He asked about "groups, individuals and
special interest organizations". Ms. Kurtz advised that
"person” could be wused to describe a |l|abor wunion or
partnership and that the primary difference between “B’ and
“C’ is the phrase “principle purpose”. In “C, there could
exi st an entity whose purpose is educational.

Representative Croft believed that it was appropriate to use
“person” rather than individual. Person is a "broader"
usage of the concept. Previously, groups were asked to
regi ster whose major purpose was to influence an el ection

He asked how would those persons, whose mmjor concern was
not to i nfluence el ections, register. Ms. Kurt z
acknow edged that was correct if that person was going to be
maki ng expendi tures regul ated under statute.

Representati ve Croft asked wher e “speci al i nt erest
organi zation” would be defined. M. Kurtz advised that the
bill does not include that definition. Al'l the references

to that are included in “C".

House Fi nance Committee 10 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



Representative Croft asked how it could be characterized.
Ms. Kurtz noted that the Court did not want to define that
ei t her. A negative definition exists. The prohibition is
concerned that it would exclude sonme groups that should not
be excluded based on the three criteria. She noted that
there are a few different types of tax-exenpt organizations
under federal code. Ms. Kurtz understood that a 501C- 4
organi zati on could engage in sonme sort of political activity
W t hout jeopardizing their tax-exenpt status. The Court has
stated that the statutes have to be read to allow entities
that fit the definition

Representative Croft stated that by definition, it would be
a group of people that are grouped together to do other
things and that end up “grouping” together to engage in
political activity. He asked if that was the source of
ACLU s discretion opinion. Ms. Kurtz agreed that was an
accurate summary of where the ACLU case went.

Vi ce- Chair Bunde noted that under "B", groups organized for
the principle purpose of influencing the outcone of
el ections. He asked what the percentage of their activity
woul d be and when the principle purpose would be cut off.
Ms. Kurtz explained that the Courts had not precisely
defi ned percentage. She added that there was a prohibition
el sewhere driving the statutes, which prohibits corporations
and unions fromcontributing. There could be a corporation
under "C', that net the criteria, which would not be able to

ot herwi se contribute because it was a corporation. Vi ce-
Chair Bunde stated that the State needs "C' to address
activity in political canpaigning. The public would be

better served by know ng know who is active.

Representative Davies asked for a description of the ACLU
case. Ms. Kurtz advised that the ACLU case was a
conprehensive challenge to the Al aska Canpaign Finance
statutes as they were recorded in 1996. The Court upheld
virtually all the activities so that these organizations
could be included. That definition was used in couple of
cases. There are federal cases indicating the federal
el ection and the direct prohibition of corporations. That
| aw was chal | enged.

Ms. Kurtz stated that the statutes have to be read to allow
the particular class of entities to contribute. The
prohi bition on corporate giving has been justified in the
positive. There is a concern of corruption that justifies
the restrictions on free speech in canpaign financing.
There is a concern about the ability to accunulate |arge
gquantities of funds that go with corporations that the
Courts did not appeal. It applies to groups |like those in
the federal chall enge.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



Representative Wi taker questioned if the bill would "l evel
the playing field'. Representative Kott replied it woul d.

STEVEN CONN, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), EXECUTI VE
DI RECTOR, ALASKA PUBLI C | NTEREST RESERARCH GROUP, ANCHORAGE,
spoke in opposition to the proposed |egislation. He
submtted that to have a level playing field, it would be
i nportant to address canpaign finance reform which would be
to protect the political process from an overwhel m ng
i nfluence by corporations. He spoke to the potential of
corrupting the process by exacting from politicians,
political debts. The Court sought to protect those entities
that were explicitly not engaged in "business" activity and

wth no sharehol ders. M. Conn stated that it would be
t hose entities whose singular purpose and ideas are not
connected to business. Those entities would deserve a
special exenption if there was a level playing field. He

believed that there would be many groups seeking the
exclusion. He submtted that there is no question that the
Court thought |ong and hard about the exenption recogni zing
the powerful inpact of business on that process. The Court
did define it in the negative.

M. Conn added, that a concern exists that those who chose
to participate in the non-business entity mght be subject

to retaliation with sanctions |evel ed. There are certain
reasons why the Court awarded immunities. He encouraged the
Commttee to contenplate those concerns. The Court’s

deci si ons should not be nodified. The exclusion is focused
on one specific group.

ROD ARNO, ALASKA OUTDOOR COUNCI L, PALMER, voiced support for
the proposed | egislation. He noted that there are groups
who advocate against the Alaska Qutdoor Council. One of
those groups is the Al aska Conservation Foundation and its
unbrella groups, the Alaska Conservation Alliance and the
Al aska Conservation Voters. He pointed out that APOC has
indicated that there is no regulations making the ACV
regi ster disclosures. He stated that the Alaska Qutdoor
Council would like a “level playing field”.

TAPE HFC 01 - 77, Side A

PAM LABOLLE, PRESIDENT, ALASKA STATE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
spoke in support of the legislation. She maintained that it
would require certain special interest organizations to
di scl ose contributions received and expenditures nmade for
canpai gns, and to disclose the true source of the
canpai gni ng contri butions.

Ms. LaBolle stated that Al aska voters deserve to know who
the contributors are and in which states those individuals

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



reside who are trying to persuade Al askans to support their
cause. She maintained that there is no reason that
pronoters shoul d hide behind their funding sources.

Vice-Chair Bunde MOVED to report CSHB 177 (STA) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CS HB 177 (STA) was reported out of Conmttee wth
“individual recomendations” and with a fiscal note by
Departnent of Adm nistration dated 3/22/01

#HB149
HOUSE BI LL NO. 149

An Act relating to correctional facility space and to
aut hori zing the Departnent of Corrections to enter into
an agreenment to lease facilities for the confinenent
and care of prisoners wthin the Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough

Co-Chair Miulder noted that the Subcommttee had net to
di scuss HB 149 and the proposed committee substitute, 22-
LS0436\ R, Luckhaupt , 4/ 03/ 01, resul ted from t he
Subcomm ttee’ s work.

Representative Hudson MOVED to ADOPT the work draft as the
docunment before the Cormittee. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it
was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT, the sponsor of the bill, spoke in
support of the proposed conmmttee substitute. He noted that
there had been nodifications made to the original bill

Co-Chair Milder stated that the bill would provide sone
certainty in relationship to the size, scope and costs of
the project. The status quo in Arizona was $65 dollars a
day. In order to provide a conparable facility in Al aska,
the cost would be approximately $135 a day. Recogni zi ng
that this would result in additional costs, the State wanted
to make sure that jobs would be well paying, the care would
be conparable, and that the Borough was satisfied with the
pr oposal . He stated that it was anticipated that the cost
woul d be 20% | ess than the average in all-State facilities,
rangi ng somewhere around $89 dollars per day. The per diem
cost excludes the contracts outside the State. He pointed
out that it would be 18 - 20 percent below the State rate.

Representative Lancaster referred to the level of -care

conpared to Arizona. Co-Chair Mulder felt that the | evel of
care and custody woul d be conpar abl e.

House Fi nance Committee 13 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



Representative Lancaster understood that the site had not
yet been sel ect ed. Representative Chenault stated that the

site selection would not hinder the project. Co- Chai r
Mul der noted that there is a tentative contract signed at
this point. He noted that he was confortable with the

nunbers and enphasi zed that there was support fromthe Kenai
Bor ough

TI'M NAVARRE, PRESI DENT, KENAI PEN NSULA BOROUGH ASSEMBLY
di scussed the Boroughs participation in the site selection.
He stressed that the mpjority of the Kenai Assenbly favors
the site at WI dwood.

Representati ve Hudson questioned if there had been a public

process to discuss concerns. M. Navarre noted that a
resolution had been adopted. The | andowner brought the
consideration before the public and the Assenbly. There

were no objections to the request for qualification (RFQ,
the conpetitive bid process award. He noted that there have
been three hearings and that the Planning Conmm ssion has a
hearing schedul ed. The issue wll be back before the
Assenbly on April 17, 2001.

Co-Chair Mil der noted that there have been sonme questions
regarding the bid process. M. Navarre stated that there
were four bids on the RFQ and an evaluation teamto eval uate
t he proposals. He stated that the top two proposals tied.
The team recommended a neeting with the Assenbly in
Executive Session. The Assenbly was wunaninobus in its
sel ection. After 30 days, there was no objection to the
pr ocess. He reiterated that the process had been fair and
equi t abl e.

Representative Harris asked if M. Navarre was confortable
that $89 dollars a day per bed could be achieved. He asked
if the majority of local residents were confortable with a
private prison. M. Navarre affirned the price. He added
that some locals would prefer a State institution, however

felt that the public would be satisfied with a private
facility as long as the mtigation issues had been “fl ushed
out” to assure adequately trained staff at a conparable
wage. At that point, the citizens would support the prison.

Representative Harris questioned if this would be a pilot
project. He asked if there would be an open bi ddi ng process
that woul d allow unions and | ocal conpanies to participate.
M. Navarre stressed that the Borough supports the use of
| ocal union |abor.

Representative Hudson noted that there would be a State
| ease anortized over tinme and questioned if there would be a
tax benefit for the Borough to have a private versus State
facility. M. Navarre responded that negotiations are open
for |lease acquisition. The Borough would own the building,

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



but it could be sold to the State of Al aska after 20 years.
There is a Borough ordinance that projects over $10 mllion
dollars would receive a 50% percent break discount on
property tax. He added that there could be sone |ow
i nterest | oans. He stated that the Borough has agreed to
take less in lieu of taxes.

In response to a question by Representative Lancaster, M.
Navarre discussed liability. He noted that liability has
two issues:

. The buil ding and revenue bonds; and
. Pri soner escape.

If the State defaulted, the lenders would be responsible.
Then the investors could end up wth the facility and
prisoner security would then be negotiated. The final
contract would require insurance to indemify.

CRAI G PERSSON, PUBLI C SAFETY EMPLOYEES  ASSOCI ATI ON,
FAI RBANKS, testified in opposition to HB 149. He spoke in
support of mnimal hiring and training standards equal to
t he Departnent of Corrections.

JAMES PRI CE, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE) , KENAI
testified in opposition to the |egislation. He stressed
that the Borough woul d be responsible for financial support.
He stated that it was premature to say that the public
supported the concept, as there have not been any public
hearings to date. He recommended that there is a need for a
feasibility study and that the project should not nove
forward wi thout that study, as it would not be in the best
interest of the public or the State.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde asked if M. Price would oppose a public
financed prison in that area. M. Price comented that
there would be better “safe guards” with a public State
prison. He noted that he would not be opposed to a public
prison.

Representative Harris suggested that Page 3, Section 3,
addressed M. Price’s concern.

RI CHARD VAN  HATTAN, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE),
PRESI DENT, CORRECTI ONAL OFFI CERS BARGAI NING UNIT, KENAI
testified in opposition to the legislation. He pointed out
that the intent was to save the State noney. He stressed
that the legislation [imts the contract to a third party in
t he Kenai Peni nsul a. He believed that there would be nore
support if it was not limted to a third party.

M. Van Hatten did not think it was fair to conpare the cost
of running a prison in Kenai to one in None. He pointed out

House Fi nance Committee 15 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



that the Departnent of Corrections is currently having
difficulty obtaining qualified personnel. He did not think
it would be possible to hire qualified people with the
| onered standards. M. Van Hatten thought that issues such
as the sewage treatnment and the water service were
questi onabl e.

DW GHT NI SSEN, (TESTIFIED WVIA TELECONFERENCE), DELTA
JUNCTION, identified his concern with the $19 dollars a day
difference, the $5.5 mllion dollars with no guarantee that
the rate would stay. He added that the whole State should
be consulted if the citizens of Alaska want prisons to
becone private industry.

ROY d LBERTSON, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), MAYOR, DELTA
JUNCTI ON, voiced concern that the State of Alaska currently
has an obligation to the Gty of Delta Junction. He pointed
out that the State needs to help Delta Junction get out from
under the lawsuit currently pendi ng because of HB 53.

Representative Hudson asked what was pending. M .
G | bertson explained that there was a lawsuit filed against
the Cty of Delta Junction. The property has never been

available at Fort Geeley and they were not able to go
offsite. The City is suing for funds in the amount of $2.4
mllion dollars. He requested that these costs be taken
care of.

Representative Davies asked if the Gty of Delta Junction
could build an 800-bed facility under the $89 dollar terns
proposed in HB 149. He asked if they would be interested in
doing that and would it elimnate the lawsuit. \V/ g
G | bertson responded that it could be built, however, was
not sure of the support.

Co-Chair Ml der noted that testinony had been taken from
Delta Junction. He observed that there had not been any
consensus for a facility to be built there. He noted that
the lawsuit is the greatest concern. Co-Chair Ml der noted
that financial relief could not be provided within the
confines of the |egislation. Co- Chair Mul der advi sed that
he woul d speak with Senator Stevens about the debt concern
for the Gty of Delta Junction. M. Glbertson interjected
that Cornell is a participant in the lawsuit against the
Cty of Delta Junction because of Allvest, Inc., and noted
that they woul d appreciate any help they could get.

DAVI D KATZEEK, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the I|egislation.
He pointed out that rehabilitation reduces recidivism He
addressed the anmpbunt that the State of Alaska currently
spends on sending their prisoners to Arizona.

House Fi nance Committee 16 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



TAPE HFC 01 - 77, Side B

M. Katzeek stressed the hardship of sending Al aska Natives
to Arizona where they cannot benefit from the support of
their famlies for rehabilitation. He felt that the State
of Al aska would benefit fromthe legislation. He enphasized
that noney flows to other states.

Representative Davies shared the speaker's concern in
regards to noving prisoners out of State, but stressed that
the legislation would replace the smaller State operated
prisons with one large private facility in Kenai. He
inquired if the legislation would result in additional
rehabilitation treatnent.

M. Katzeek believed that the bill would be the first step.
He acknowl edged that a comunity effort was needed to
address the issues of concern. He stressed that if the
facility is located in Alaska, it will require a comunity
effort in getting involved.

MAKO HAGGERDY, HOMER, stated that he disagreed wth M.
Navarr e. He stated that only 40 percent of the |1ocal
residents want a private prison and that 60 percent feel
that it is the State's responsibility to house and care for
prisoners. He acknow edged the need to return prisoners to
the State of Al aska and recommended the renoval of the third
party debate. He believed that the third party contractors
have conplicated the issue.

ALFRED MCKI NLEY, SR., ALASKA NATIVE BROTHERHOOD, JUNEAU,
spoke in support of bringing the prisoners back to the State
of Al aska. He observed that building the facility would
provide jobs and infrastructure for the State. He asked if
the State of Alaska could be reinbursed for nedica
expenses.

Representative Croft questioned if the federal governnent

woul d be paying for the Native inmate mnedical costs. \V/ g
McKi nl ey thought that the federal governnent woul d reinburse
the State for Native nedical expenses. Co-Chair Ml der

pointed out that the State currently does not receive
rei nbur senent .

BARBARA HUFF- TUCKNUS, DI RECTOR, LEGQ SLATI VE AND GOVERNVENTAL
AFFAIRS FOR THE TEAMSTERS UNI ON, JUNEAU, pointed out that
this is a philosophical issue and one that needs to be

debat ed. She stressed that the l|egislation would address
i ssues regarding bringing the prisoners back to the State of
Al aska. Ms. Tucknus noted for the record that the

construction issue should be addressed and asked for
assurance that the construction of the building would be a

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



union project and that jobs would be brought back to the
State of Al aska.

Representative Wiitaker referred to the Departnent of

Corrections “Cost of Care” sheet. He commented that the
nunbers indicate that the State is spending an additional
$12 million dollars per year. The legislation indicates

that the State is spending an additional $7.7 mllion
dol l ars per year. Co- Chair Mul der advised that the nunber
was $7 mllion dollars.

Representative \Witaker asked if it was in the State’'s best
interest to spend an additional $7.7 mllion dollars per
year for the next 20 years. Co-Chair Mil der stated that the
i ssue was whether it was better to bring the prisoners hone
or not.

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #1. [ Copy on
File]. Co-Chair Ml der OBJECTED.

Representative Croft comented that the anendnent would
provide for a conpetitive process between anyone that woul d
like to be a part of that bidding process. He acknow edged
that it was conplicated. He noted that he had rewitten
Section 2. The anmendnment would “hol dout” for each area the
price of $89 million dollars. Representative Croft admtted
that there is a thread of concern regarding the way the bil
is approaching the project. He agreed that it s
appropriate that the prisoners cone hone. He stated that
Amendnent #1 woul d open up a conpetitive bidding process.

Co-Chair Mulder reiterated his objection. He stated that if
it works in Alaska, there is greater potential down the

road. He stated that the first focus would be further
mar ket i ng. He added that the project would be a venture
opportunity for Kenai. There is concern in providing

culturally relative activities. He pointed out the letter
of support fromthe Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN)

Co-Chair Mulder comented that it would be less than the
State alternative. He asked at what price is it worthwhile
to bring our inmates honme. The Kenai Borough is satisfied
that they will be able to track those people.

Representative Davies spoke to the issue of «culturally
appropriate care. The State system has not been either in
the way of or prohibiting the culturally active care for the
i nmat es. He stressed that the fundanental problemis wth
al cohol treatnent.

Representative J. Davies asked, “Wat does it nmean to bring
the prisoners hone". The legislation wll bring the
prisoners from out of state to Alaska, but what about the
prisoners that are spread throughout the State and not near

House Fi nance Committee 18 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



their support structures. He noted his support for the idea
that other areas throughout the State bid. He voiced his
concern that the proposal had been subjected to the
conpetitive pressures of the market place.

Co-Chair WIllianms commented that the legislation would be
good for the State. He acknow edged that it would be good
to get the prisoners closer to their famly areas; however,
| ocal areas are often hesitant to discuss building prisons.
He projected that the State is going to need nore prisons.

Representative Hudson voiced his support for the Kenai
Prison project. He pointed out that one facility already is

| ocated in that area. He suggested that it would be
“special” to have a pre-sentencing facility and a prison
facility with “special” prograns for the inmates. He

reiterated that that legislation is the “right way to go”.
He noted that he opposed Amendnent #1.

Representative \Witaker asked the process that lead to the
pr oposal . Co-Chair Mulder replied that the Kenai Assenbly
was contacted by KNA with the idea and asked for a sole
source. The Borough said no and went out for an RFQ They
recei ved four responses back. The full assenbly nade the
single selection. The process has been ongoing for one
nont h.

Representative Witaker stated that it is clear that the
Borough followed a procedure, which was appropriate. He
questioned, however, the procedure that the State has
followed in the process. He noted that this is a matter of
public trust and that the State should be cauti ous.

Representative Croft expressed that the Kenai Peninsula
Borough did a great job for what they had been asked to do
as a borough. They were not representing the State's
interest; they represented Kenai’s interests. Page 11 lists
what the points were awarded for and that none of those
poi nts enconpass any aspect of costs. He did not question
Kenai’s choice of a partner; however, that differs fromthe
State determning who is the best and the cheapest. Kena

wll contract wwth the State for beds. The Legi sl ature nust
make sure that the process is conpetitive.

Representative Croft stressed that this is "sole sourcing”
He spoke to the advantages to conpetition. He enphasi zed
that this is “governnent defining what mght be the right
price”. He did not know if the partnerships could happen in
ot her areas.

TAPE HFC 01 - 78, Side A

House Fi nance Committee 19 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



Representative Croft stated that the fundanental problem
with the legislation assunmes that South Central is “hone”.
The amendnent would allow all other areas to bid. The
anendnent woul d bring conpetition to State governnent.

Vi ce-Chair Bunde noted that people throughout the State do
not want to have prisons in their area. There wll Dbe
opportunities to have nore prisons |ocated in other places
of the State in the future if this one works.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Davi es, Mdises, Croft, Wittaker
OPPCOSED: Harris, Hudson, Lancaster, Bunde, WIIlians,
Mul der

Representati ve Foster was not present for the vote.
The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-6).

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #2. [Copy on
File]. Representative Croft explained that the anendnent
woul d add t he | anguage:

“This applicability section does not affect the
authority of the commssioner of Corrections to
designate the correctional facility to which a prisoner
is assigned” to Page 3, Line 16.”

There bei ng NO OBJECTI ON, the anmendnent was adopt ed.

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #3. [ Copy on
File]. Co-Chair Miulder OBJECTED for the sponsor’s
expl anati on.

Representative Croft explained that the anendnent would
insert the | anguage:

“But including the capital costs for construction of
the facility, including debt service” to Page 2, Line
3. ”

Co-Chair Ml der W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON

Representative Davies MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #4. [Copy on
File]. Co-Chair Ml der OBJECTED.

Representative Davies commented that he was concerned about
the standards <contained in the <commttee substitute,
specifically the capitalization and the per diem costs. He
assuned that the State would be 10% above for construction

He referenced Page 2 of the Amendnent, which indicates the
per diem rate if 18% was saved over the State's costs.
Representative J. Davies noted that until the capitalization

House Fi nance Committee 20 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



costs are known, the State does not know how nuch noney
woul d be left on the table. He requested that the Commttee
determ ne the nunbers before awardi ng the contract.

Co-Chair Mul der stated that the anendment addresses the work
and deliberations of the Subcommttee. He comented that
the State’s interest is to “get the best deal possible”,
while at the sane tinme providing for a conparable |evel of

care and the culturally relevant prograns. Under st andi ng
that fact, if the State achieves a 10% savings, then that is
considered a “good deal ”. He argued that the spreadsheet

provided by Departnent of Corrections nunbers could be
guestioned into eternity.

Co- Chair Mul der advised that the Subconm ttee determ ned the
cl osed conparison with the Anchorage facility, which costs
about $135 dollars per day. He suggested that it would
anount to approximately a 30% savings. He believed that was
sufficient to base bringing the inmates hone. He rem nded
menbers that there is a desire for economc activity on the
Kenai Peninsula and the concept would provide good paying
j obs.

Representative Croft advised that Anendnment #4 was the “flip
side” to Anmendnent #1. He voiced concern with the process
that is being established. He believed that there should be
a process of determining what the price should be

conpetitively. He stated that there needs to be a narket
pl ace conparison including the ethics of busi ness.
O herw se, t hose nunber s shoul d be “rigorous”.

Representative Croft stated that there has been a
superficial discussion regarding the issue and he believed
that the Commttee had not chosen the "best" nunber.

Co-Chair WIlianms advised that two nunbers are known. He
reiterated that people in Alaska are concerned with the
costs; however, they want to get the prisoners back to
Al aska and the facility built. Co-Chair WIIlians surm sed
that where ever the facility is built, it will be full as
soon as it is conpleted. He believed that other facilities
woul d need to be built in the near future.

Representative Davies enphasized that nost of these
prisoners belong in treatnent prograns and not in prisons.
He reiterated that the process has not been a conpetitive
one. He questioned why there has not been greater House
Fi nance Commttee scrutiny for the State of Al aska.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Davi es, Mdses, Croft, Hudson
OPPQOSED: Harris, Lancaster, \Whitaker, Bunde, WIIlians,
Mul der

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



Representati ve Foster was not present for the vote.
The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-6).

Representative Davies WTHDREW Anmendnment #5. [ Copy on
File].

Representative Croft MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent #6. [ Copy on
File]. Co-Chair Ml der OBJECTED.

Representative Croft stated that the anmendnent would add
| anguage to Page 2, Line 7, after “index,”:

“I't is also the intent of the Legislature that the
Department of Corrections not sign any agreenent for a
private prison until the litigation regarding the Delta
prison has been finally resol ved”.

Representative Croft believed that the [|anguage of the
anendnent would provide the State wth a “clean slate”
bef ore noving forward.

Co-Chair Ml der suggested that the anendnent would confuse

two separate issues. He nmaintained that Cornell, Inc., has
no interest in Allvest, Inc. and has no interest in the
| awsui t . It is purely Alvest, Inc. that has the |awsuit

with Delta Junction. The issue is not tied to Kenai.

Representative Harris agreed that the issues are separate
and did not think that the legislation should be tied

t oget her. He spoke in support of resolving the litigation
and believed that the anendnent could "kill" the proposed
bill.

Representative Lancaster asked if the State was nanmed in any
of the lawsuits. Co-Chair Miulder replied it was not.

Representative Whitaker asked if Section 4 repealed the
agreenent with Delta Junction, would the State be held
har nl ess. Co-Chair Milder stated the State would be held
har m ess. He wunderstood the relationship that Cornell,
Inc., and Allvest, Inc., had in Delta Junction, was that the
contact between Delta and Allvest, Inc., existed. Cornell
Inc., had an option to operate the facility. They were not
a signer on that contract.

Representative Witaker questioned if all parties including
Delta would hold the State harnless. Co- Chair Ml der
replied it woul d because the State was not a signer on that
contract.

Representative Croft discussed that there is a relationship

with that entity. He stated that whether Cornell was
involved or not was not inportant, as it was only intent

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/09/01 1: 39 PM



| anguage. Before the new operations are started, there nust
be clarification.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Davi es, Mbses, Croft, Wittier
OPPCOSED: Harris, Hudson, Lancaster, Bunde, WIIlians,
Mul der

Representative Foster was not present for the vote.
The MOTI ON FAI LED (4-6).

Co-Chair Miulder noted the fiscal notes by Departnment of
Revenue and Departnent of Corrections.

Co-Chair Miulder MOED to report CS HB 149 (FIN) out of
Committee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTI QN, it
was so ordered.

CS HB 149 (FIN was reported out of Conmttee wth
“individual recomendations” and with a fiscal note by the
Depart ment of Revenue and a note dated 3/22/01 by Depart nment
of Corrections.

#

ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 5:25 P.M

House Fi nance Committee 23 04/09/01 1:39 PM



